SUNIL KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FF-36, AZAD HOUSE, LAXMI NAGAR. NEW DELHI-110092

L
lndependent Auditor's R:epa_r.t

To the Members of
- New Spice Sales And Selutions Limited.
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financisl satements of New Spice Sales And Solutinns
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the bafancs sheet as ar 1% March 2018, the statement of prifi und
- bosy including the saement of Other Comprehensive Incame, the Cash Flow Sttement and the Statement of
Changes m Equity for the sear then ended and & summary of the sigmificam sccouniing policies sud other
explanatory information.

Managemont’s Respoasibility for the Standalone Financlal Statements

.
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible fur the matters stated jn Section 1345} of the Coumpunies Act,
2013 (“the Act™y with respect K the preparation of these stndsione Ind AS Mnancial senements thy STV T gmd
fair view of the stite of affuirs Financial position, finaneiql performance meluding othes compiehensive income,
cash Mows and changes in equity of the Company i accordance with the sccounting principles generilly aceepted
it India. inchading the fndian Accounting Standurds (tnd AS)specified under Section 133 of the Avt reud with rule
7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 #nd the cotnpunies. | Indian Accounting Standards Rules. 3015 This
résponsibility alse includes maintenanie of adequate dccaanting reconds in sscordance with the praryesions of the
Act for safeguarding o the assets of the Company und tin presenting and detecting hauds and ot sregninrities:
selection and application of appropriste scvounting pol icies: making judgtients and estimates that e reasonabke
and prodent: and we design. implementation and maitenance af adequate internal financial contrnt thit wore
openting effectively for ensuring the docuracy amd completeness o the weconnting recortds. relevam to thie
prepuration and presemtition of the standatone Ind AS flnancial statements tha give o true and fair view and wre
free from matecial misstatement, whether due 0 fesud e emor

Auditor’s Responsibilicy

Uur responsibility is to express ap opinion on these standalane b AS fisancial staternents bused on onr audin,
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the sccounting and sediting stundards and matters which wre
requilred to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Aet wnd the Rulesy made thercunder We

Stfar_idmds.m;ﬂirr that we comply with othica) requitements and plan and perorn the audit 1 obtain regsomibie

- assurance pbout whether the financial statements are free trom maserial nisstacement

An sy imvalves performing procedures 1o obtain sudit evideénce about the amounts and diselosures 1n e
finacisd m;:mgnm The procedures selected depend on the auditir's iudgment, ncluding the gssessiment of the
visks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS Financial statements, whether due o Fraud o ervor. fo




making thuse risk assessments, the auditor considers interaal financisl conprol relesat o the Clompuany's
- preparating of the standalvne tnd AS financial statements that give a true sod Bar view in order 1o design wudit
provedures that are appropriate i the Fircumstances. An audit also includes @ algating the appropr atengss of
BeCounting policies used and the reasonableness of the secumting estimates wmads by Uhe Comginy s Ditectors, @
well a5 evaluating the overall presentation of the standatone Ind AS financisl statements. W behieve that the audit
evidence we huve obtained s sufficient and appropriate v provide a busis for our audit opinion an the stamfalone
. Iend AS financial statements,

Opinioa i

In our opinion and 10 the best of our information and sceonding w the explanations wiven to us, the sandalone Ind
AS financial statements give the information requived by thie Act i the manper so requareit and give @ towe snd Fair
vigw in conformity with the accoumting principles geaceally accepted in Indis, of the state of ahits of the the
Company as at 31° March, 2018, and its lass including other camprehensive income, its cash Mows and e changes
in eguity for the year eaded on that date.

Rtpnn on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i As requined by the Companies {Auditor's feport) Ovder, 2016 (Fthe Order”) issued by the Centryd
Gavernment of tndia in terms of sub-section (101 of section 143 of the Aer, we give i the Anrexure |
statement on the matiers specified in the parageaph 3 and £ of the order

i As required by Section [13(3) of the At we repon thar
LS
{a} We have sought and obtained 1 the information and explanations which & the Best of aue
howledige und belief were necessary for the pueposes of owr aadit:

i} in our opinion proper books af aceount ax sequired by faw have been kept by the © ampany i far
as it appears from our examination of those boaks

icl The Bulanee Sheer Sttement of praft apd Loss inchuding the Stawement of Cther Coammprahensvy
Income. the canh flow Statemient fnd Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Repoe aee
in egrecinent with the hooks of account,

ied} In our opinion, the afueesaid sandalose bnd AS financial statemenis comply woth the Aceosting
Statndards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companics { Acsuuls)
Rules, 2004 Compusses { Indian Accounting Standards WRules, 2015

e} on the basis of the written representations civeived from the dircctors 5 ot 319 March ATHE, aed
taken ow recond by the Boand of Directors, mone of the anrectors is disqualified as vi 317 Murch
2018 from bring appeinted i a divector in térms of Section 164 {20 ot the Act

if with respect to the adequasy of the mtermal financis! contiols over financia! reponting of the
Company snd the opemting sffectivencss of such controls, refer 10 oW separate mopont in
“Aanexure 17 1o this repon

(gl With respeet to the other matters meluded in the Auditor's Report i accordance with Rule ¢ | OUf
the Companies (Andit and Auditors; Rules. 2014, in aur opinion and to the best of our infhrmation
and according to the explanations Riven to us




i The Company has dicksed the imoact of pombing Nfgations (npaet on s Doase sl PosEion a0 i

fimancial statements- Refer Note

-

o3 C of the stundlone Bnancigd sateingily

i The Company did mor haye any fomg-torm contriets including derivarive comracts for whick thew wens

any mutenal foresceabie lowses

fi There wene o amounts which rejuired e be rnsferred 1o the fnvestor Education sig Protection Fud

- by the Company
e

L

Sumil Kumar

Chartered Accountant
FOP NOL 0668%)
Membership No. 317943

Place: Delly)
Date: “(023”)_@[8



—

Re: New Spice Sates Ang Solutions Limited (*the Company®)

repoet of even date

af The Company has maintained proper recands showing fufl patsciilars, wehuding quantiians o delmls ang
aituation of fived SRy

BIAN (xd assers were physicalls verified by the manapement during  the previdasin wmeardance with g
phmw;mmme af verifving them onge Mt vears witich, in our PN, & ressonabile hiaviog regand p
the size of the Company and the nature of its aisets. No miterial discrepamcies wete notsced on ok
verification,

¢} Acvanding to the ifortation and explanations given by fhye NAnagement. there are no frmovab e propesties,
inclade in Property. Plans & Equipment of the Company and accordmigly, the Tequirements ynder prra g
HiXer of the Order are not dpplicable 1o the Compsmy

The management has conducted physical verification of WVentory at reasonable intesvals during the vear geul
"o material discrepancies were neticed om such physical verification.

Accarding w the information and explamtions given 1 Us, the Company has s arnted any lians, siised or
unsecored fo companies, firms. Hanited Hahility partnerships or oty parties. coverod iy the PRt mhintaingd
ander section |89 of Comparices Aet,2013, Accordingly. the previsions of clagse 3jiii) Var thi s (o) of the
Linder are not applicable 1o the Lompany and hepee HOT Commented ypon

fit our apinion and according b the information el O plinations BIven s us, there are no Wans giarantess, and
securities granted in respect of which Provisions of Sections 185 Ard 186 of the Companies Act 2413 are
applicable and hence nor vimaented upon. Based on sur Audit progedures performed. for the Pl 1f
feporting the true and fair vjow e the financial Stitements angd aeeording o in frmarion and expliitions Livern
by the management, the “omgany hus complied wih rrovisions of Section 186 of tlhe Compunies Act 2001 in
respect of investments macde during the year,

The Company has not aeeopted any deposits from the public.

Tar the best aur kaowledye ang explined. the Cenral Government tus o specifiod the interiinge of gog
Fevcrds under Section 148¢iy ofthe Companies Act. 30 I3 for the products/seryices of the Compeny

(ai The Conpany is gemwrally regular in depositing with Sppeapridte authorities undisputed statwton dyes
including providens Fusud, “mployees” stages msuree, income tax, sales-tay, services K costoms Juty, excise
duty, value added rax, cess and other materig| stawtory dues applicabie 1o it thowgh there has hees shigght ddelay
Hi few cases.

b} According w the lormanan and explanations given to us, 06 undeaputed amounts paroble w respect of
provident flund, emiplayvers’ states insurance. income X, saleslay, services Bag, customs duty. encise gy,




of  Natue

virtue added L, g and vther maernal stz
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8. Hased on our sudit procedures performed for the parmese of reporting thee true and fair view of the :
statembents and acconting 10 infonmation and explanations given by the managtment we are of the i that
the Cownpany bas wot defaubted in repayirient of dwes (o any bank or debenture holdire Further, the company
did not have any dues in respect of a financint nstitution or govermment durtng the veur :'

9. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Pl el
- statements and acvording to information and explanations given by the menugement. the Eommany s o

eaised any money by way of initial public oifer / further public aifer {including debt mstiumensas and terim
foans. Hence reporting under cliuse {ix) is nof apphicable to the company wnd beoce no eomimesied g

L. Based wpon the audit procedures pertormed for the parpase of reporting the teus and fair view of the fnuncial
; Statements and according o in tion and explanations given by the nign agement. werepat that no fend on
or by the officers and emplayees of the Company has been neticed or reported during the vear.

il Accarding to the information and axplanations given by the management, the provisions. of Reetion 197 read
with Schedsfe V of the Act are a0t applicable 1w the Company and henee eeperting ander clause ixib are not
appdicable snd hence nut commented opon.

12, In our opinion, the Company is not 2 nidhi LCampany . Therefare, the provisions of clause Bl of the order are
not applicable to the Compuny and fence not commeried upeay

I3, Based on vur audit procedures performed for the purpese of reporting the teue und fair view of the finuscial
sttements and according to inFormation and explanations giveo by the management, tansactioe, with i
rejated  partics are i complisnice with sections. |77 andd 188 of Companies Act. 2011 whene applicadsle s the
details fuve heen discliosed m the notes 1 the Tieancial satements, 45 reguirsd by thie applivable EISNT T
stiprscdargdy

14, According 1o the information and explanations given 0 us and o un oversl sxamination uf the balance sheet,
the Company has not made any preferential alement or private placement of shares or mly convenible
debentuees during the vear under review The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 42 of the
Companies At 2013 in respect of the preferentind issue of fully converthle debentures e s boldine
Compauny, Hindustan Retail Privaiel imited




13 Bised on our sudit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true snd tair view of the foancial
stements and according w0 information and exsdanstions given by the mimagemint, the Cam prans has
entered Mo any non-cash transsctions"with directors ar persons conmected with them ~

16, According W the information sed explanations given to us, the proyisions of Section 4517 of the Reserve Bank
of tndia Act, 1934 sre mot apphicable to the © QRPN Y

Sl Kumar

Chartered Accounmant
FOCP NO. 066881
Membership No. 517943

Place: Defly)
Date: \t ‘ 08\ Q,Ol&



ANNEXURE 2 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEW SPICE SALES AND SOLUTTONS LIMITED ‘

Repurt on the tnternal Financial Controls under Cliuse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 13 of the Companies
At 2013 (“ehe Ac1™

Fo the Mambers of New Spice Sales And Selutions Lmited

We have sudited the imernal financisl controls over financial reponting of New Spice Sales Ang Solutiong
Limitedi“the Coeipany™ ) as of March 3L 2018 in conjursction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Compauy for the vear ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Campuny’s munagement 15 responsibie for estshlishing and A mning interal financial controds biaset o
the imeenal control over financiat reporting oriteria established by the Company comsidering dhe esential
comiponents of iwernal control stated in the Lividance Nete on Audit of tntemal Finascial Contrals over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accowntants of i Fhese responsibilivies include the
design. implementation and maintenance of sdequate mternal financial conteots that were operting effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adberence 10 compeny s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraads and errors, the accumey nd compictencss of
the accounting records, and the timely prepantion of seliable financial intonmation, & required wnder e
Companies Act. 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Char responsibilite is 1o EXprEss an apinkn an the Company’s tatemal finaneial wonitrols sver Bnangial TEPOTg
based on our audit. We conducied owr audit in accondance with the Guidagcs Nate on Audit of Interaal Franeigl
Controls Over Financial Reportin £ fthe “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Awditing as spevified under

»section 143410} of the Companies Act, 243, 1o the extent spplicable to an sl ot intemul financenl compods,
bath apphicably w0 an audit of Internal Financisl Controls gnd both issued by the tnstitute o © hrtered
Accaantants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reEHTEIEnls
and plan and perform the audit ko cbtain reasehahie assurance about whether adeguate tndernal fmam it contnds
over Dnancial reporting was esahl ished and mgintained and it such controds operated ¢ffectiveiv o all muturial
NP,

Our audit involves pertorming procedures o b gudis evidence about the adequacy of the intered finangial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effect] vemess. Oure andit of intemat financial controls
over financial reporting included ubtaming an understanding of internal fuancial controbs over finangial
reporting, assessing the risk that s material weakiess exists, and Resting dodt cealusting the design misd operating
effectivenass of internal control based on the mnsessed risk. The procedures selecred depend on the audstor s
Jusdgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol the finaocial statements whigther
due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have phisined i3 sufTicient and appropraate prewide d basic e o suds
opiniun on the internal financial controls systen over financial reporting

Meuning of Tnternal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting

A company's infermel Saancial conirol over fimancinl reparting is 4 process dosigned o provide eeasonable
Assurance regarding the relinbility of financial repirting and the preparation of financial statemnents for external




purposes in secordance with penerally accepted accounting principles. A Campany's internil financial contral
over fisncial reporting includes those policies and peocedures that (L) pertaio © the maintenance of secnrds
that, in'reasonable detail. sccurately and tairly ceflect the imasactions ed dispositions of the assels of the
Lempany, 11} provide reasonable dssurance that iransactions are rocorded 4 BLCESSETY B pennit prepartion of
fancial statements in aceordance withgenerally accepred acenuning principles, and that receipts amd
expemditures of the company are bemg made snly n sccordance with suthirisations of maragemen and
directors of the Company: and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention of timely detection of

- urauthorzed sequisition, wse, ar dispusition of the company's assets thar could have » materisd efféot on te
Fimancund stalpmuats.

Enherent Limitations of Interual Financial Cantrols over Finuncial Reporting

Because of the inberent fimitations of internal firanciat controls ever fimmeial repurting, ineluding the possibitiy
at coflusion or improper Management override of controls, materisl misstatements dus 1o errne o Traud may
eecur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the interial finances] doimtrals sver finasie )
Feporting to future periods are subject to the risk thut (he nternal Fuancial contral over finaseial reporting hay
_ bevome Inadequate because of changes in canditions, o that the degree of comphiance with the policies ar
peescedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our Gpinion, the Company s, i all material respects. au adequate imernal financial controls svstem aver
fimancial reporting and such internal fmancial contrals over financial Peporting were opersting ¢f Tectvely as at
March 31, 2014, based on the internat contral over financial feparting eriteris established by the Compasy
considering the essential compoments of interms! coatrol stated in the Guidance Noe o Awdit of ntertial
Fingngia ﬂx;mmis Chver Finane il Reporting issoed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of bndia

Sunif Keamar

Chartered Accountam
FOP NO. 06688 |

Membership No $17943

P[M Dellhy
Date; i f 08' %/3




New Spice Saies and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Splce Retail Limited)

CIN: U32201HP1988PLCO0B020

Regd. Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Pot Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh - 173205

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Particulars Notes 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs.{000's) Rs.(000's)
Assets
Non-currert assets
Property Fiant and Equipment 3 - -
Capital work-in-progress 3 - -
Cther Intangible Assets 4 = =
Intangibie asset under development 4 - =
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 - -
{il} Loans and advances 6 - &
(iii) Other Financial Assets 7 - -
Other assets 8 - =
Current assets
Inventories 9 - *
Financial Assets
(1) Trade Receivables 10 £ L
{li)Cash and Cash equivalents 11 = *
(in) Cther Bank Balances 11 = 2
(v} Leans and advances 6 ¥ *
(v} Others Financial Assets 7 - -
Current Tax assets 12 * #
Other assets B - a
Fssets directly asscciated with discontinued business 34 97,616 196,425
TOTAL ASSETS 97,616 196,425
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 13 997,174 997,174
Other Equity (2,294,940) (2,244,643)
(1,297,766) (1,247,469)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i} Borrowings 14 - =
{ii) Other finandal Liahlities 15 » L
Frovision= 16 £ f
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(1) Current Borrowings 17 = =
(it} Trade payables 18 2
(iii) Other Financial Liahilities 13 . #
Other Liabilities 20 % 5
Provisions 16 = ¥
Liabilities directly related to discontinued business 34 1,395,381 1,443,694
1,395,381 1,443,894
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 97,616 ~ 196,425

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

.h:lembarshlp no.: 5‘ 7 qq'l
Fep o — o 668H

Date: ” ‘Dgu 20’ g

For and pn behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited

(

Amdndedp Singh

Direc|
DIN:

r
5356101

1Y
A
3 7 /’
Ravindra Kumar Sarawagi

Director
DIN: 07456783



New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Spice Retail Limited)
CIN: U32201HP1988PLC008020
Regd. Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Post Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh — 173205

Statement of Profit & Loss for Year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars Notes For the Year ended March For the Year ended
31,2018 March 31, 2017
(Rs. '000) (Rs, '000)
Continuing operations - -
(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (a) = e
Discontinued operations
(Loss) before tax for the year from discontinued operations (88,828) (233,433)
Tax adjustment related to earlier years - =
(Loss) for the vear from discontinued operations (b) (88,828) (233,433)
(Loss) for the year (a+b) (88,828) (233,433)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - continuing operations

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/assat &

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - discontinuing

operations =
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset n 1,605
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising (Loss) (88,828) (231,828)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the vear)

Earnings per equity share from continuing business

(1) Basic 21 #

(2) Diluted -

Earnings per equity share from discontinuned business

(1) Basic (0.89) (2.59)
(2) Diluted (0.89) (2.59)
Earnings per equity share from continuing/discontinued business

(1) Basic (0.89) (2.59)
(2) Diluted (0.89) (2.59)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial
statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions

i o

;

Ama yﬁingh Ravindra Kumar Sarawagi
i Director Director
Membership no.: &%) 147 DIN: 05356101 DIN: 07496783
Feb wo~ 66609)
Place: Noida

P ) 8. 2018



New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Spice Retail Limited)

CIN: U32201HP1988PLCO0B020

%egd. Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Post Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh — 173205

Statement of cash flows for year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars For the Year ended March. 31, For the year ended March
2018 31,2017
= {Rs. '000) (Rs. "000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before taxation (88,828) (233,433)
Adjustments for :

- Depreciation / amortisation - 29,216
- Loss on disposal of fixed assets (net) (46) (147)
- Provisions and unclaimed balances wiritten back (29,897) (22,651)
- Exceptional item - (30,225)
= Diminution in the value of non-current investments - *
- Unrealised exchange loss/(qain) (net) 1,785 .
- Interest expense 71,375 39,615
- Interest income (3,531) (6,102)
- Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) - 33,450
- Bad debls and advances written off 20,968 5
Operating (loss) f profit before working capital changes (28,172) (190,277)
Movements in working capital:

(Increase) | Decrease in inventories 1,728 329,633
Decrease in trade receivables 38,580 391,356
Decrease f(Increase) in non-current loans and advances - 3.175
(Increase) in current loans and advances 6,754 32,656
(Increase) In current assets 8,067 -
Increase in other non-current liabilities 54100 (3,275)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities (19,692) (150,502)
(Decrease) in trade payables (20,044) (1,095,572)
Incease/ (Decrease) in non-current provisions (2,471) 153
Increase/ (Decrease) In current provisions (27.661) (121,815)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations (48,320) (804,468)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 14,485 18,586
Net cash from /(used in) operating activities (A) (33,835) (785,882)
CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in progress and - (3,296)
capital advances)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 46 2,391
Interest received 3,597 9,305
Fixed deposits refunded by banks 53,625 259,352
Fixed deposits made with banks (41,975) (53,645)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (B) 15,293 214,107
CASH FLOW FROM [ (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid (30,135) (69,651)
Issuance of share capital 3 150,000
Issuance of Debs 290,000 623,500
(Repayment)y proceesds from  short term borrowinas (237,832) (185,164)
Leans taken from body corporate -
Loans repaid back to body corporate s ol
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) 22,034 518,685
Net Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 3,491 (53,090)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 4,966 65,134
Cash and cash equivalents of business transferred during the year (7,078)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,457 4,966
Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 4 16
With banks

- On current account 8,453 4,950
Total cash and cash equivalents {note 16) 8,457 4,966

2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes :

1. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set aut in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on Cash Flow Statements notified by Companies

Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended).
2. Negative figures have been shown in brackels,
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New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Spice Retail Limited)
CIN: U32201HP1988PLCO0B020
Regd. Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Post Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh — 173205

Statement of changes in Equity(SOCE)
"Amount in Rs. 000"

Asat Ksat
Particulars 31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017
Equity
Number of shares 99,717,401 99,717,401
Equity Share Capital 997,174 997,174
Total 997,174 997,174
Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
2) Securities premium account® 399,503 399,503

*This reserve represents amount of premium recognised on issue of shares to shareholders at 3 price more than Its face value

b) Amalgamation Reserve * 1,292,347 1,292,347

* Represents difference between the shares Issued by the Company as consideration and the net asssets acquired upon amak ion of another pany with
the company in an earlier year.

«€) Capital Reserve® 844,347 844,347

* Persuant to board of director decisions In the previous year the company had entered into slump sale agreement with Hotspot sales and solution private limited to sell its assets and
liatilities of retail business on going concern basis. The reserve represents the difference between the amourt of considration received and the net asset value of the retail division,

d) Retained Earnings *

Opening Balance (4,881,174) (4,649,346)
(Loss) for the year : (88,828) (231,828)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
-Remeasurement gain of defined benefit plan lai 3: %
Closing Balance (4,970,002) (4,881,174)

* Retained earnings refer to ret loss of the Company till the date of financial statements.

e) Equity portira of compulsorily convertible (Refer Note 14) 138,865 100332

(2,294,940) (2,244,643)

As per our report of even date

For andn bedhal of the board of direclors of New Spice Salss and Solutions Lim

Ni o

3 P Singh Ravindra Kumar Sarawagli
membership no.: 5| 7€147 Direftor Director
FC ? N“”;-—"‘G‘ Ss-' DINj 05356101 DIN: 07496783
Place: Nolda
Date:

082018



New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Spice Retail Limited)
CIN: U32201HP1988PLCO0B020
Regd, Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Post Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh — 173205

Notes to accounts

1. Corporate information

The financial statements comprise financial statements of New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31,
2018. The Company is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was
engaged in the business of trading of Spice branded mobile handsets through distribution network ("devices business”) and multi-brand mobile
handsets and related accessories through a chain of retail outlets across India ("retail business”).

The registered office of the Company |5 located at Village Billanwall Labana, Post Office - Baddl, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddl, Himachal Pradesh —
173205.

During the previous year, the retail business has been sold by way of Slump Sale to anather entity Hotspet Sales & Solutions Private Limited
("HSSPL"). The slump sale was effective June 1, 2016,

During the previous year, the Company has assigned Spice Trademarks to anothar entity vide a Trademark assignment agreement signed with that
party. The Company has accordingly discontinued the use of assigned trademarks in relation to the device business.

The name of Company was changed from Spice Retail Limited to New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited with effect from September 5, 2016.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 11 August, 2018,

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. The Company has
prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following financial assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

Derivative financial instruments;
Certain financial assels and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
Defined benefit plans — plan assats measured at fair value;

During the year, Company continued to hold assets pertaining to discontinued business and has liquidated the assets and llabilities pertaining to
the discontinued business.
The financial statements are presented in Rs. and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (Rs. 00O), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current} non-current classification. An asset s treated as current when it

is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liatility for at least twelve months after the reparting period

Al other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

= Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company dassifies all other liabilities as non-current.
The cperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company

has Identified twelve months as its operating cvcle,

B. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented In Rs., which is also Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions In foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences, that arised on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised In profit or loss, Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
manetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value Is determined,
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change In fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss Is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




Derivative financial instruments

The Company used derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
Instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract Is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, Derivatives were carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative

Anv qains or losses that arised from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

C, Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair valug measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
olace either;

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised In the financlal statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and
unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assats held for distribution in discontinued
operation,

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, Independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Company decides, after discussions with the Company's
external valuers, which valuation techniques and Inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company's accounting policles. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, In conjunction with the Company's exteral valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and lizbility with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

D .Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Nan-current assets (or disposal group) are classified as held for sale If their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. The criteria for held for sale is regarded met only when the assets are available for immediate sale in its
present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genulnely be
sold. not abandonad .

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any nltial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell, A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not In excess of any cumulative
Impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or 0ss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group)

is recoonised at the date of de-recoanition.

Property, plant and equipment and intanaible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amartised.

A discontinued operation Is a component of an entity that either has been dispased of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

- -represents a separate major line of business or aeographical area of cperations,

- -is part of a sinale co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate maior line of business or aecaraphical area of operations.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other
assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities In the balance
sheet.

Discontinued operation are excluded from the results of continuing cperations and are presented as profit or loss before f after tax from

discontinued operation in the statement of profit and loss.




E. Revenue recognition

Revenue was recognised to the extent that it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment Is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking Into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its awn account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordinaly, it is excluded from revenue.
The specific recoanition criteria described below must also be met before revenue Is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods was recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,

usually on delivery of the goods, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of tha consideration recelved or recelvable, net of
returns and allowances. trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services
Revenue from services rendered towards VAS and alrtime commission was recoanised as and when the services are rendered.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, Interest income is recorded using
the effective Interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or recelpts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but dees not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income Is included |n other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

F. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are Lhose that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reparting date in India, where the
Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilitles are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses,
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax lasses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets |5 reviewed at each reparting date and reduced to the extent that It Is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecoanised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset Is realised or the liability Is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or lass (either In other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recoanised in correlation to the underlvina transaction either in OCI or directly in eauity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities.

G. Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of salesf value added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax Incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid Is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amaunt of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.




H.  Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to cantinue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1
April 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment,

Capital work In progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, IF
any. Repair and maintenarice costs are recoanised in orofit or loss as incurred.

The Company used to calculate depreciation on a straiqht-line basis over the estimated useful lifes of the assets as follows:

- Leasehold Improvement : 2 to 9 vears, or useful life, whichever is lower (device business)

- Leasehold Imprevement : 3 vears or unexpired leasa, whichever is earlier (retall business)

- Plant and equipment : 15 years

- Furniture and Fittings* : 8 to 10 vears

- Office Equipment (excluding mobile handsets) : 5 years

- Mobile Handsets* : 2 vears

- Computers (excluding server) : 3 years

- Servers ! 6 years

*The Company, based on assessment made, used to depreciate certain items of fumiture and fittings; and mokile handsets over estimated useful

lives which were different from the useful life prescribed In Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Since the Company has discontinued its operations during the previous year, property, plant and equipment have been fully depreciated in the
books.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any galn or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is incduded in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

I. Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2015
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrving value as the deemed cost of the intanaible assets,

Intangible assets (software) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Based on management assessment cost of software was being amortized over their estimated usaful life of 6 years on straight line basis; and cost
of other tangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life of 3 years on straight line basis,

Since the Company has discontinued its operations during the year, the property, plant and equipment have been fully depreciated in the books

The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amartization perlod s changed
accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS-8 “Acceunting Policies, Changes In Accounting
Estimates and Errors”,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the differerice between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

J. Investment in subsidiaries

Investment In subsidiaries are measured Initially at costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any,

Investment in subsidiaries are derecognised when they are sold or transferred. The difference between the net proceeds on sales and the carrying
amount of the asset is recoanised in the statement of Profit and loss in the period of derecoanition.

K. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed In the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs in
connection with the barrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
barrowing costs,

L. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the Inception of the lease.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

For arrangements entered Into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and
circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Company as a lessee

A lease Is classified at the inceplion date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that retains substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the Company is dassified as a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
payments to the lessor are structured Lo increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases,




M.  Inventories

Inventeries comprise of trading goods which are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cast is
determined on weighted average basis.

het realisable value |s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated casts
necessary to make the sale.

N. I irment of non-fi ial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered Impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corrobarated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including Impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
0. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a
finance cost,

P. Warranty

The Company was providing warranty on spice brand handsets. Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product Is sold.
Initial recoanition is based on historical exverience. The Initial estimate of warranty-related costs s revised annually,

Q. Retirement and other employee benefits

a.Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme Is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received befare the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction In future payment or a cash refund.

b. The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
liability as at the year-end represents the difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability of continuing employees and the falr
value of the plan assets with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) as at the end of the year. During the year 2017, Company has fully used
funds for gratuity plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

c. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 manths, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date.,
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflaws by reference to market yields

at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long term employee benefit for measurement
purpose & such long term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
year-end. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settiement for 12 manths after the reporting date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for
a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non current liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included In net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included In net nterest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
oceur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the fallowing changes
in the net defined benefit obliaation as an expense in the statement of orofit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and lesses on curtailments and non- routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income




R. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial (iabllity or equity instrument of another entity,
Financial assets

Initial rec ftion and

Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, L.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Sk " "

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four cateqories:
1) Debt instruments at amortised cost

2} Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTH 0OCT)

3) Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

4) Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A'debit instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

al  The asset is held within a business model whose obiective is to hold assels for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) an the
principal amount ocutstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium en acqulsition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation Is included in finance income In the statement of profit and loss, The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on
receivables, refer to Note 10.

Equily investments
All equity investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.

Equity instruments included within the FVYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) Is primarity derecognised (e,
removed from the Company's balance shect) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through amangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not Fair valued through profit
or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables and all other financial with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to 12-
month ECL, unless there has been a significant Increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured for specific assets,
The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that Is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amaunt that Is required
to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and berrowings, payables as
appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowinas and finandial quarantee contracts.

Subsequent ment

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilitfes at fair value through profit or loss

Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upen Initial
recegnition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are dassified as held for trading if they are Incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains er losses on liabilities held for trading are recoanised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This Is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of prafit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

This cateqory generally applies to borrowings, For more information refer Note 17,




DPerecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference In the
respective carrying amounts is recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

S. Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract, On Issuance of the convertible
debentures, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount s
classified as a financial iability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds s allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32
criteria for fixed to fixed dlassification. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

T. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flaws, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are
considered an intearal part of the Company's cash management.

2.3 Recent Accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has Issued the Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and has amended the
following standards:

Amendments to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows
The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements lo evaluate changes In lizbilities

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application of the amendment,
entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2017, Application of this amendments will nat have any recognition and measurement impact. However, it will require additional
disrlagirag in the finanrial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment

The MCA has issued amendments to Ind AS 102 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction, the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settement features for withhalding tax
obligations, and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-basad payment transaction changes its classification from
cash settled to equity settled. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on ar after 1 April 2017. The Company Is assessing the
polential effect of the amendments on its financial statements.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements will be given in due course, Currently
the provisions of Ind AS 102 are not aoolicable to the Company as there are no cash-settled awards.
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5. Non current Investments

31-Mar-18 21-Mar-17
Rs. '000 Rs. "000
Nen current Investments
I equity instr of Subsidiaries (ung d)
carried at cost unless othenwise stated
50,000,000 (March 2017:50,000,000) Unquoted fully paid up
equily shares of Rs. 10 each in Cellucom Retail India Frivate -
Limited
{Provision for impalrment in the value of investment made in
earlier year) - L
6. Loans and advances
On- n
Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs. '000 Rs, '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '0
Loans to employees 20
Unsecured, considered good - 4 i
Unsecured, considered doubtful %

Provision for doubtful advances - - .

Loan and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered qood -

Unsécured, considered doubtful i :

Provision for doubitful advances 2 % o

Total - - -

Since the Loans and advances pertains Lo discontinued business ,the amount outstanding of Rs.75% thousand (March 31, 2017; Rs, B64 thousand) has been disciosed separately under
Assets related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34).

7. Other Financlal Assets

- ent Current

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
)

Rs, '000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. '000

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtiul 2 .

Provision for doubtful security deposit - = £

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good = ¥
Unserured, considered doubtful - +

Fravision for doubtful advances -

Others

Deposit with maturity more than 12 months (Refer Note 11) *
Interest accrued on fieed deposits o
Interest accrued on loan Lo employees

Income accrued but not billed -

Since other financial assets pertains Lo discontinued busi the amount ding of Rs. 642 Thausand (March 31, 2017: Rs, 7,357 thousand) has been disciosed separately under
Assets related to discontinued business {Refer Note 34).

B. Other Assets

LR Current

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
¥

Rs. ‘000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Advance to Suppliers
Unsecured, considered good -
Unsecured, considered doubtful .

Provision for doubtful advances -

Capial advance -
Security Deposits {Non financial] . -
Prepaid rent -
Prepaid expenses < e
Interest accrued on income tax refund - - -
Interest accrued on VAT refund - - -
with statutary / authorities =
Total - - -

Since ather assets pertains to discontinued business, the other assets of R5.39,858 thousand (March 31, 2017: Rs, 47,525 thousand) has been discosed separately under Assets related to
discontinued business (Refer Note 34).




9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
000 Rs.

Traded goods {Inchading stock in transit Rs Nil (31st March 2017: - &
Rs. Nil))

Servce components and spares (Including stock in transit Rs. Wil
(315t March 2017; Rs.NilY)

Since Inventory pertains to discontinued business, the inventory of Rs, Nil {March 31, 2017: Rs. 1,728 thousand) has been disclosed separately under Assels related to discontinued business
(Refer Note 34),
10, Trade Recelvables

MNon-curren Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
: Rs. ‘000 0 Rs. '
Trace Rececivable - “ 3 -
Trade Receivable from related parties (Refer Note No 24) - 5 > =
Total - - - -

Breakup for Security Details:-

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered nood - 2 =
Unsacured, considered doubtful = s &

Provision for doubtful receivables # 4 z

Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except for cases mentionad in Note 24,

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 4.

Since the company has disc i lons, trade bles are non interest bearing and are generally more than 180 days.

Since Trade Receivables pertains ta discontinued business the amaunt outstanding of As. 725 thousand (March 31, 2017: Rs. 60,273 thousand} has been dsclosed separately under Assets
related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34).

11, Cash and bank balances

Non-curres Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
[

Rs. ‘000 Rs, '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Cash and eash equivalents

Balances with banks:

= On current accounts =
Deposit with remaining maturity of less than three month - - -
Cash on hand - ’

Other bank balances

Margin Money Deposit:

— Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 manths - -
— Depasits with remaining maturity of mare than 3 months but - - -
less than 12 months - =
Amaunt disclosed under non-current assets (note 7) - - - -

Margin money deposits given s security
Margin money Deposits with a carrying amaount of 41,975 thousand (March 31, 2017 Rs, 53,645 thousa nd) are pledged with banks/ govemment authorities,
Since Cash & Cash equi pertains to discontinued busi J[Ahe amount q of Rs. 50,429 thousand (March 31, 2017: Rs, 56,500 thousand) has been disclosed separakely

under Assets related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34),

12.Current Tax Asset

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs. "000 Rs. '000

Advance income-tax

Total - B

Since Current tax asset pertalns to discontinued business, the amount of Rs. 5,203 thousand {March 31, 2017: Rs. 19,687 thousand) has bean disclosed separately under Assets related to
discontinued business (Refer Note 34).




13. Share Capital

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017

Authorized
100,000,000 (March 31, 2017: 100,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
99,717,401 (March 31, 2017: 99,717,401) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 997,174 997,174

\ 997,174 997,174
(a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Nos. Rs. '000

Outstanding at the end of the year as at March 31, 2017 99,717,401 997,174
Outstanding at the end of the vea as at March 31, 2018 99,717,401 997,174

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares

and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts. The distribution will be in praportion ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

(c) Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its helding company are as below:

Asat As at
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 21_]17
Holding Company
\
Hindustan Retail Private Limited, the holding company
99,717,401 (March 31, 2017: 99,717,401) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up 997,174 997,174
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
ASar LU
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017

Yo holding In Yo holding In the
Name of the shareholder Nos. the class Nos. class
Equity shares of Rs 10 sach fully paid
Hindustan Retail Private Limited, the holding company 99,717,401 100.00% 99,717,401 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders and cther declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding

represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(e) No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.




14, Non Current borrowings 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Unsecured Rs. '000 Rs. '000
Compuisorily Convertible Deb :

Zero Interest Debentures

G by Ct D {"CCDY) of Rs 9,13,500 (March 31, 2017: Rs. 6,23,500 thousand) have been issued to Hindustan Retall Private Limited { Holding company) during the
year. These CCDs are unsecured with 2800 coupan rate and are compulsarily convertible to equity on and before 315t Decembar 2018 at a price per equity share to be arrived at the time of
converison of CCDs into equity shares on the basis of valuation as on that date. The Company has amortised debentures at 9%, The differenital of Rs 1,358,865 thousand (March 2017;
1,00,332 thousand) between the amount received and the fair value (at ised cost) on inital has been ragarded as equity and disclosed seperately as 'Equity portion of

e lsarily © Dt under other equity (refer SOCIEL.The Debentures do not carry any debt covenant.

Since the borrowing pertains to discontinued business the amount cutstanding of Rs. 8,54,255 thousand (March 31, 2017: Rs, 5,33,412 thousand) has been disclosed separately under
liabifities related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34},

15, Other Financial Liabilities

31-Mar-18
Rs, '000
Atamortisad Cost
Security Deposits - -
Sinice: the other financial liabilites pertains Lo discontinued business ,the amount ing of Rs. 14,379 th | (March 31, 2017: Rs. 19,879) thousand has been disclosed separately
under liabilities related Lo discontinued business (Refer Note 34),
16. Provisions
Tong-term SRoTCTerm
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs. '000 Rs, '00D Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Note 22} 2 3
Provision for leave benefits - i

Other provisions
Provision for warranties 2

Provision for warranties

A provision was recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold during last cne year, basad on past experience of kevel of customer service expenses, Assumptions Usad to
calculate the provision for warranties were based on past trend of sales of mobile handsets and customer service expenses incurred. During the year the company has revaised excess
warranty provision made amounting to Rs, 24,258 th as there is no chligation on part of the company. During the year, sales made out of discountinued business, do not carry any

condition for warranty.

31-Mar-18 “31-Mar-17

Rs, '000 Rs. '000
At the beginning of the year 24,258 129,851
Arising during the year = 9,217
Utilized Reversed during the year 24,258 144,870
At the end of the year® - 24.1&
Current portion - 24,038
Now-current partion = 240

* werranty provision pertains to discontinued business, the amount outstanding of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2017; Rs, 24_2?& thousand) In respect of closing provision has been disclosed

separately under liabilities refated to discontinued business (Refer Note 34)
Since the Provision for Gratuity & Leave benefits pertains to discontinued busi Jthe amount g of Rs. 1,712 th (March 31, 2017: Rs. 7,586 thousand) has been disclosed
separately under liabilities related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34).




17. Short term borrowings
i

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs. '000 Rs. ‘000

Secured
Bills discounted from a bank* - «
Buver's Credit from Bank** - %
Unsecured loan from related party (refer note no 24)
8% Interest bearing loan and advances from Spice Mobility . -
Limited, the holding company, repayable on demand - .
11% interest bearing ban from a related party repayable on u "
demand
1% interest bearing loan from Hindustan Retail Private Limited, - -
the holding company, repayable on demand - .
10.5% (Previous period NIL) interest bearing loan from Hindustan a =
Rietail Private Limited, the holding company, repayablz on demand - -
Interest bearing loan from a related party repayable on demand = -

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings - =
Secured barowings = £
* The bill discounting facility is ubtained from HDFC Bank, the tenor for which is 60 days and the rate of interest charged by the

bank is 11.5% pa, The facilty has been secured by way of:

1. Bxclusive charge over present and future movable fixed assets and current assets of the Company.

2 Equitable mortgage of 194,198, Sector-125, Nokda, by Hoding company.

3. Corporate Guarantee of the holding company, Spice Mobility Limited.

4, 4 PDCs of Rs. 25,000 thousand each from the Company,

** The Buyers Credit facility is obtained from HOFC Bank, the tenor for which is 180 days and the rate of Interest charged by the
bank is libor plus 0.85-1.10 basic points, The facility has been secured by way of:

1. Exrlusive charge over present and future movabie fixed assets and current assets of the Company.

2 Equitable mortgage of 194,198, Sector-125, Noida, by Helding company.

3. Corporate Guarantee of the holding company, Spice Mobility Uimited,

Secured Loan Covenants

The Bank loan containg covenants, The Debt convents relating to limitation on indk [ get suspended, if company
meets certain prescribed cretiera . The Bebt € related to limitation on indet of the data of
the authorisation of the Financial statement. The company has also satisfiad all other Debt convanants prescribed .

The unsecured kan do not carry any Debt covenant

Since the Unsecured loan from Related parties pertains to discontinued business the amount g of Rs. 60,302 th d
(March 31, 2017: Rs 35,179 thousand) has been disclosed separately under liabilities related (o discontinued businss (Refer Note
34




18, Trade Payables

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Trade payables (refer note 31 for details of dues 1o Micro and = .
small enterprises)
Trade Payable to related parties =

Since Trade Payables pertains to the discontinued business the amount autstanding of Rs. 4,37,819 thousand{March 31, 2017: Rs
4,83,692 thousand has been disciosed separately under labilities related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34),

19, Other Financial liabilities
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs, '000 Rs. '000

Interest accrued but not due on bormowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - -
Creditor for Capital Goods = i
Forward contract payable . =
Unaccrued Income - 2
Employee related labilities S :

Terms and cenditions of the above financial Kabikties:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settied on 60-120-day terms

- Interest payabie is normally settled quarterfy throughout the financial year

- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 24,

Far explanations on the Company's credd risk management processes, refer to Mote 29,

Since Other Financial Liabiltes pertains to the discontinued business the amount fing of Rs. 2,589 th d (March 31,
2017: Rs. 33,007 thousand) has been disclosed separately under liabilities related to discantinued business (Refer Note 34),

20. Other current liabilities

31-Mar-17
Rs. '000
=Pt il

Advance from customers and thelr credit balances 23 L]
Oithers

Indirect Tanes and Duties Payable = X
Empiloves Statutory Deductions - .
TD5 payable - 5

Since Other Current Liabilites pertains to discontinued business the amount outstanding of Rs.24,325 thousand (March 31, 2017
Rs. 44,017 thousand) has been disclosed separately under liabilities related to discontinued business (Refer Note 34).




21. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of

Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion
of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit/(loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Rs. '000 Rs. '000
Profit/(Loss) after tax
Discountinued Operation (88,828) (233,433)
Net profit/(Loss) for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (88,828) (233,433)
Continuing Operation
Profit/(loss) after tax (88,828) (233,433)
Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (88,828) (233,433)

Nos. Nos.

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 99,717,401 90,224,250

Convertible debenture - =
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating 99,717,401 90,224,250
diluted EPS

*Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are not considered for EPS considering anti dilutive impact.

Basic and diluted earning per share of Rs 10 each (in Rs.) (0.89) (2.59)




22. Gratuity (defined benefit plan) e el

a) Defined Contribution Plan

As at
31 Mar 2018
Rs. '000

As at
31 Mar 2017
Rs. '000

Gratuity plan SE1

3,703

Total 981

3,703

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets 3 gratuity on departure at 15
days salary (last dravin salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six menths. The scheme is funded with an Insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy. The level of benefits

provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the time of departure.

The fallowing tables summarises the companents of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of prefit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plans:

Statement of profit and loss

rsonnel expenses) for Gratui

Gratuity
As at As at
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017
Rs. '000 Rs. 000
Current service cost - 1,068
Interest cost on benefit obligation - 1,1
Net benefit expense - 2,177
Balance sheet
Chanoes in the present value of the defined benefit are as follows:
Gratuity
As at As at
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017
Rs. 000 Rs, '000
Opening defined benefit obligation 3,725 25,085
Current service eost - 1,068
Interest cost = 1,109
Expenses Recognised in Profit and loss statement* {691) 2,177
Benefits paid™™ 2,052 12,460
Liability transferred to HSSPL / SOPL - 9,060
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption =
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Financial Assumption = 163
Actuarial (Gain}/Loss on arising from Experiance Adjustment (2,198)
Total change in defined benefit cbligation dus to change in acturial losses/(gains) recognised in OCT = (2,028)
Closing defined benefit obligation ~ 981 3,725
*Due to discontinuance of operation by the company, the management has decided to provice for the liability on actual basis instead of providing liability based on acturlal valuztion.
**Amount has been paid directly by the Company and trust.
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Gratuity
Asat As at
31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017
Rs. '000 Rs. "000
QOpening fair value of plan assets 23 5,565
Expected return - 585
Transfer from ancther company - 1,474
Benefit Paid = 7,583
Fund Management Charge =
Actuarial gain/(less) for the year on Asset - (423}
an assets 3 P




23. Commitments and contingencles

A, Commit nrents
Estirnated amount of contracts remairing to be executed on capdal sccourt and ot provided for Fs Nl (March 2007 © Bs M),

B. Contingent labilities

Clalms against the Company met acknawledged as delils
Legal claim contingency

Mar-18 Mar-17
Rs.{000') Ay.(000's)
Calmig against the Company not acknowbedoed & debts.
Consumer Disputes® 1,502.50 184250
Cemands raised by sales ta authanties 717 sx 418,330.88 755,040.25
19,3133 BTX TR TH

arry, anising out of these ciaims would be on the manufacturer

20d pot liely to devaive on he Company.

L mmmmmmndimmmmamwu.wllwwmmhmds&mumnmmmtmm.wmwummmwmuwmawmmwmw
dwq-datnlesmm-mwwmmkhqwmhnmwnmmahmmmh hwmu.nzmudmu.mummmmem:uuummwm 17,451 thousand Fas been
recenved from Bihar, Haryana, karnateka & Uttar Pradesh raspectively,

**rThe Conpany has I'aidmohm.:hmmmmmmmmnrumwmmmmmm

€. Fimancial guarantees
The Compary has pledged its fved deposit of Rs. 40,000 thousand (March 30, 2017 As nmmm;wumuwmz: 2017 Wll, In respect of the bank guarantes taken by Hotspot Sales & Salutens Pt Umited and
Celucom Retad india (P} Emied and Ks, 1,169 theusand (Harch 31, 2017; 5 thousand] with respect to varous gavernment mutharities

4, Related party transactions
Folivin table provides the total amcunt of bransactions that iave Leen enterod nto with related parties for the relevant financial year,
Ultimate Holding Company Srmart Giohal Comporate Helding Private Umked

Halding Company Hindustan Aetall Privata Limited
SNBI Mhm{mmdwn Feelall Privata Limted )
Eagice Connect Private

Subsidiaries * Callccen Retall Indla Private Limited
*For infarmation about the subsidiary, refer bolow:
Namg Principal Activitios  Country of % af ahareholding
T1-Mar-18, 3LMar-a7,
Cedhucom Retad Inda P Lid :‘ndlnq of Mabile India 100 100%
radset

Hames of ather related parties with whom Uransactions haye takaa place during the year:

Fellow s ubsidlaries Soice Dightal Linvted
Hotipot Sales & Solutiors Pt Limited fusta 12.00 2016)
Splce Onling P Ltd. (Formerty known i3 Solce Onive Retal Pt Lid ) (upto 12.02.2018)
Mabisoe Technology Pyt Ltd,
Wall Strect Finance Lid
Kiinaan Expocks Pot Lid

ey Managament Personnel Executive Officers:-

Mr, Amandees Sinah
Me. Sheiman Narayan Fandevl fuota 04.07.2017)

Indopandent Directors:-

Bir. Suman Ghase Haira (uste 25.05.2017)
M. Umaneg Das fupto 25.05 217)

M, Sunil Kumar Ehanssl

25, Segment information

Frimary segmesnts: Butiness Segments

The Company was engaged malnfy in telecomminications- Moile butiness which ru;vumndﬁu business of tracding of mobie handssts. The Company has discomtinued this busiress during tha year and translemed busivess nasets & Falyities
exting as at March 31, 2018 relating 1o the business to assets/iabdtics related to basiiess.

Secoaiary Segmenits: Geographical Segment

Az tha Company's business acthvity fals within a singta peographical segment, there Is no additi i b prevded for segments,

26, Hedging activies

iwatives not s hedging
The Compary used lorgign exchange forward cantract o manage some of its Lransaction exposure. ml'm-anum@m;mmar:mwaaahmmaﬁuummfap«mmammm
cumency expisire of he urderying transaction, gererally from three months to six manths,




27, Fair values
St DUt below, 15 & comparison by elass of the camying amouns and fair value of the Cormpany’s finaial instruments, other than those with carrylng amounits that &re reasonatie approximations of far values:

in Rs. 000}
TTying Value Falr Value
Az at Asat As at Asat
21 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2047 31 Max 2018 31 Mar 2017
Financial assets
Other financial assets :
Security Desosts, H 368 . 8
Total a4 —em e —1
Financial liabilities
Security Dencst: 14.379 15,785 1373 19,769

Compulsority Convertibde Debentures 854,255 _533.412 _B54,255 _S31413

Total BEB634 553,201 868,635 553,301

The Managemant has assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade reCeivalies, other cument financial assets, trade payables and other current financial labilibies approsimate to their
carmying aneunts kirpely dus to the short-term maturities of thesa Instruments.

The fair value of the firancial assets and liabilites i included ot the amount at which the Instrament could be tachanged in & current transaction between wiling parbes, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The
foliawing metiods and assumptions were used Lo estmale tha fair values:

« Barrowings are evaluated by the Company based on paramezers such as interest rates and spealic country risk factors,

- The fair value of olher financial iab ites, obligations under nance lases, is estmated by discounting future cash lows using rales currently aves abée for dabt on samilar terms, credit risk and remaining maturitiss,

- TheFalrunruaal'theEanpmr‘sInrmxpmdkmsaredel.etmnmb\rusmqDCFmemoduhgdsmntlaheIhiutliecsIhemr‘sbmmmmunwterﬂu!hmwvmmod.




8. Fair value hierarchy

(1} Financial Instruments by Category

Pmeml i R '000)
“Mar-17

31-Mar-18

Financial Assets FUTPL A ined Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost

“Long Tenm loans and advances - - -

Other Hon-Current Aranclal Assets 44 - “
~Trasde recervables 725 - 60,271

~Cash and cash equivalent % B454 - 4,565

-Othar Bank Balances - 41,975 - 53,625

Cusrent keans and advances = 759 - 554

-Other Financlal assets = 558 - 7,313
Total financial assets = 52,555 - 127,064

Fon Current Barmawing = 854,255 - 533,412

Dther Long term Uailities 14,379 - 19,783
Current Bamowing * 60,302 - 38134
Current Trade payabies = 437,813 - 33,652
Other Current: Financial Labilives - 583 = 33,008

Total Financial liabilities - 1,365,345 = 1,366,035

(2} Fair valus hisrarchy
The des tha far vilue hierarchy of the ¥ assets and habiities,

il i falr value Kicrarchy for assets a5 at 31 March 2017;
i fair val hierarchy for llabilities: Amount in By, ‘0f
a alua measuremenl using
Quated prices [nactive  Slgnificant cliservable  Significant unobscrvabie
Date of valuation Tolal markets Tnputs Inputs
fLewil 11 fLavel 1 Mevel 31

Libltiss measured at fair vahie:

Barrowings 3l-Mar-18 &5, 255 i B54.255 2

Borrowdngs 3L-Mar-17 533,412 - 533412 -
Securiy Depesis 31-Mar-13 14,379 1437
Securty Deposits 31-Mar-37 15,768 15,763

Thm have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the perod.
i s cl fair valug hierarchy for assots:
{Amaunt I fs, '009)
Queted prices In active i tle  Signifi
Date of valuatian b markets (Levai 1) inputs {Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)

Assels meatured at far value:
Hssats for which fair values are disclosed (Note 27):
Other franciel sasats ©
Securty Depodis A-Mar-18 El - P21 -
Security Deoosts 3l-Mar-17 e 368 -

Thera have been no transfers batwien Level § and Lawel 2 during the pevice,




29, Financial risk management objectives and policies

mmmuwsmlﬁmulabmq Du'wbanssmbwww trada and cther paysbles. ﬂxmlummnﬂ&ucﬂmnﬂhhmahmhmmsm;.mﬂxmmqigixpdhndimummm
trede gind other and ca: and bank balances that desie dhectly from s operations,

The Company b5 Bxposed o market risk, credit risk and liquidity rsk. Tha Compary's BEnkaf MAragement advises mhﬂﬂ;mmnmmm risk governance framewsrk for the Company. The sank management provides
&ssurance to the Company's senlor managamant that the Company's finencial risk activiies are poverned by sppeopriata podces and procedures and bhat financial ishs ars Kedifes, mesired and managed n scoordance with the Company's
policles and risk objectives, Tha Board of Diectors reviews A sgrees on pobcles for mensging gach of these risks, whach are summarkssd Bakow,

1)Market risk
Market risk s Lhe risk that the fair value of future can fows of 2 financs instrument will fustuite becatsa of changes in market prices, Market risk compiies hnwuaﬁhmﬁnummmmm Price fisk, such &
equity price sk ard commodity risk. Financa! instruments aTected by market sk noude loans and bormawings and deposis. Company ks not effoctey by commediy risk
mmmmmwrﬂmmumn to the postion es st 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 152 Ased 2005,
The senshity analyses have been prapared on the basis that tha smounk of et debd, the ratio of foed to flaating inberest rates of the debit instruments are all constart .
Thea analyies exchels tha impact of mavements in nurket varisbles on the catrying values of gratuty and other post- reLiement obligatiors, pravisons,
The Tellniing assumpbions have been made in calculating the sensthety anatyses:
* The senstivty of tha relevant profit of boss Ram s the effect of tha assumed changos in respactive markst sk, This s based on the financial assels and firuancial lisbdes heid at 31 Parch 2017 and 3L March 2016,

“Intesest rate risk
Inl.u‘stnuMBlrlrblﬂmtU‘\ehrwhleuhinulhHmdaﬂmhdﬂlwummﬂwumlﬁeddunguhMH Tre k2 the risk of changes in markel inlerest rates relates primadly to
the Secunity depests receivedfpald and barrowing,
Interast rate sensitivity
The Fabiawing tabée ¥ 12 @ reasorably change in interest rates cn thet portion of loars snd borrowings affected. With at other variables held canstart, the Company's profit before Las & #Tected trough the
impact on Blasting rate berrowings, 2 foliows:

{Amountin Re, 000}
Effact on loss before tax

Increasa{decrease) in basis paints

31-Mar-18
ma +50 [4.572)
"a - 50 4572

31-Mar-17

IHR +50 (4126}
i -5 4136

The asiimed mavement in basis peints for the inberesl rabe senativity analysis is besed on the cunrently cbiervable market emironment, showing a significartly igher velatity than In priar years.

~Futeign currency risk
Fuumcm:rqmﬁsu-lkkmmem—valwnrl\.luuummr.fannmueuﬂnumtlbeuuuu(hamnwdmmmmmwm exposire b the risk of changes in forsign exchange rates relates primanty ta
e Company's cparsting activities espensa are incummed in & foreign currency, moumwmmmumw\mmkhhedwmbm&mememwmnmmmwamm
purchases

\\Mammhmmmmmmdbmaw hwymmmmwmemuwmmmuhmw For hedges of Rorecait transactions the darvatives cover the period of
npwnIinmuuupmldaecnhl!mnnhuuamuemwupmdewuwrdu‘tmnﬁmzwhwm




Forelan currency sensitivity

g tabin: the sensi Nammmﬂwmamu:hvm,mwmmmmm
IWUSD  Effect on buss before tax
rate Effect on pra-t I

IMar-18 5%

5%
J-Mar-1¥ . 5%

5% &
“EquiLy price risk
The Company does ot have any exposurs ta equity sk other than equiy of subsidiary compary.

2)Credit risk

Caedt pisk i the risk that counterparty will et meeet its obfigations under a financal instrument or customer contract, kMWIMw-mwwklwﬂmwl risk [rom its operabng scthites (primanky trade receivables)
and frem its finanang adivties, inceding deposits with banks 2nd finarcisl institutions and otfier firancial nstrumants,

Trade recalvables

Customer credst risk s rmansged subject ta the Company’s Foilcy, e gontrol relating o oredit ik Credit quality of & customer B Bssessed and Bmlls ace defined In accordance with this
susessmant, A1 31 March 2018, tha Company had net cutstanding of Rs 735 thousand (31 Mareh 2017; Ry, £0,273 thousand) pertaning 1o discortinued bitness diaciod seperataly under Assets related b ducontinued business.

mmmmumumrwmummmimahmwm

-Financial instruments and cash deposits
Crecdt riak from Balances with banks and financal institations is mansged in accordsnce with the Fompary's polcy. Further Lie Company's policy alsa evers the limits of over sl de posk which the Cormparty can make with a particular bank or
Mranclal institution, The Company doss ot maintain Lhe significant amount of cash and deposits other than those required for s cay to day cperatians,

Aauid ity risk
Tha Compary's ebjective = bo nsaintsin optimom levels of iguidity to maot its ¢ash and collateral requireredts at 8 tmes. Tha Company relies on & min of borrowings and excess coerating eash flows ta mest s needs for unds, The curm

committed ires of credit are suTcient La meet 5 shart to medumy kong term neads, mcmurnmmrunnqrmudn-lqumm-mmnmmgkmmkmamhnHWWr‘mhﬁ maiitaining sufficiert
headroonn cn its undravwn committed barrowing faciities at al times $0 that the Campany dees not breach bomawing knits of covenants (where #ppicabie) on ey of its borrowng faciites.

The ablie belowr summarices the maturiy profie of the Company's = based on g d paymants,
On Demand Less than 3 Manths 3-17 Months 15 Years =5 poars otal
"
31-Mar-18
Borrowings [Won-Cumeit) ‘ : + 54,258 = £54.355
Bormowings {Curment] B0, 302 - - L) = 60,302
Ot financial Rabditiesinon-cuament] = = 14,37 = 14,375
Orrer fnancial katsillesfcurenth * 2.58% . = , 2,589
Tracke and olher pavables 13 437819 = 3 532819
Total 60,302 440,408 - BEB.534 - 1,369,345
On Cemand Less than 3 Months 3-12 Months L5 ¥ears = Syears Total

Year
31-Mar-17

rent) » = sz - s34
Borrovings [Current) kLR b 35179
Other finaccial Rabdities [ noarcurrent] 4 A 262,955 % o 62,955
Cahar finarcist Esbdsties|cument) 19,78 19,789
Cther financial Babdties/currenth 33.008 - . = 33008
Trade ard olher navables & 81552 L] - * 483693
Totad 351re 516.700 161.955 553,201 - 1,368,035

~Excessive sk concentration
memathuwlmn|MhuulMemaﬁnmengq.di\ﬁnnrbwnmaﬂmoradi\mkshuaeumWalrmuhmmmhmwmhcmmwwmmmmmhba
smiarty affected by cheages in sconomic, political or cther conditions. Ce indicate the relath vity of the Company’s performance ta developments affecting & perticdar industry,
[nmwmmummh-munfrnﬁ,h&mpmmwmmemmmmmhmmmwmd:m' M.WMMMMMWWWMWG
accordngly.

~Collateral ‘

The Company has pledged part of its margen monsy deposts, mmquns,w,wslmn,m?:sz,smumm;huﬂxummmwmmmmmdm.wp.mmmmuMmmm
retum the securities b the Company. There are no cihar sgnifieant terms and condions msoclated with Whe Use of colataral,




30, Capltal management

For the purpese of the Company’s capal mansgement, capdl ncludes fsued equRty capital, share premiim and a1 olher equity reserves attibutable o the Bquity hoklers of the parent. The prmary shjectve of the Company's capital
B the vakie. Ta maincain o 3cfust the eagital strocture, the Conpany may ssua new "

The Company manages s capilal structune and makes adjustments in light of changes in eganamic conditions and the requirements of the financial COEAANLS,

Capital include the follawing -

Asat A5 at
31 Mar 3018 31 Mar 3017
Rs. ‘000 AR —
Fquity 597,174 9L
Convertible Debenture BE4.255 i 513412
(2,284,540 234,54
Total capital (433511} mm_?:_

rnmmmmmlw@mmwﬂuwlmmwmmmwmmwmr-w: umwmmwmwﬂumwmmmmmtdeﬁunﬁunmn
:mm.erwhuhmﬁqn-mmmwummwmmhmmmmmmnmluubmmhudusnwmwmmdwmmmwuwmmhww
period

hﬁwwummnhwm,pﬂwmsrwmmammmmnmdsiHmmﬂm:lmrwm.

31, Getails of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Tha princpal amount and the interest due thereon remaining wipald 13 any supplier 25 at the end of each accoundng year
~Fringipal smownt due to micro and small enterpesas
-Iriterest due on above

HIL NIL
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section lﬂdNMMDh%awwmwlmuwwa HIL KIL
the supplier beyond the appointed day dunng each BCCounting year
mamtoflmmstdmnndmnu:hwwdndavlnmkinumt{mmhmmwdbulum the appointed day I8 NL
dueing the year) bus withaut adding the interest specified urder the MEMED Act 2006,
rhamnldlnwuiawwdarﬁmmmuwmathmddmzwmm NIL KL
Tluamm:vfl\.nhu—htm_r.lrumwd..eandpawhiee«mlndnsuomed.mmm,mumnabenfm the incerest dues as above
are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpese of disalk a5 a deductibl & der Section 23 of the MSMED Act HIL HIL
2006 HIL HiL
w subs|diary:-
Maximum
amount
Balanceason | Balanceason March31, | outstanding :L’ﬁ“';"“" :“"'r:‘"":h
March 31, 3018 2017 during the year| Y el
(Rs. '000) (s, '000) ended March | 2% Benaj,
31, 2018 (Rs, 2017 (Rs. "000)
'000)
{Kimaan Expexts Private Umited - = < 74

33, Disclosure required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Incluged in Josns and advances, the particulars of wiich are dedosad below as required by Section 186(4) of Comparies Act, 2013

Details of Investments mads (At costh
Particulars As on Ason
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Re 000 |
50,000,000 (Previous year 50,000,000) Unquotad AUlly paid up equity shares of As. 10 2,437 482,439
in Celeom Retail India Privats Umited




New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited (Formerly Known as Spice Retail Limited)

€IN: U32201HP1988PLC008020

- Regd. Address: Village Billanwali Labana, Post Office - Baddi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh — 17320!

N‘_otes to accounts

34. Pursuant to decision of its board of directors taken in the previous year,

the Company has discontinued "Spice" Brand mobile handset

business. Being a discontinued operation, this business is no longer presented in the segment note. Accordingly, assets and liabilities of the
business have been classified separately as assets / liabilities related to discontinued business.

(a) The details of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018 classifi

ed separately as assets / liabilities related to discontinued

JDusiness are given below:
Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs.(000's) Rs.(000's)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property ,Plant and Equipment - -
Capital work-in-progress - -
Other Intangible Assets - -
Intangible asset under development
Financial Assets
(i} Non Current Investments - -
(if) Loans and advances - -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 44 44
Ogher non-current Assets 15 15
: 59 59
Current assets
Inventories 3 1,728
Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 725 60,273
(iiCash and Cash equivalents 8,454 4,965
(iii} Other Bank Balances 41,975 53,625
(iv) Loans and advances 759 864
(v) others Financial Assets 598 7,313
Current Tax assets 5,203 19,687
Other current assets 39,843 47,910
97,556 196,366
Assets directly associated with assets pertaining to 97,616 196,425
discontinued business
Non-current liabilities
(i) Borrowings 854,255 533,412
(i) Other financial Liabilities 14,379 19,789
Long Term Provisions 788 3,259
869,422 556,459
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 60,302 298,134
(i) Trade payables 437,819 483,690
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 2,589 33,008
Other Current Liabilities 24,325 44,017
Short Term Provisions 925 28 586
525,060 887,435
Liability directly associated with assets pertaining to
discontinued business 1,395,381 1,443,894
Net assets/ (liabilities) directly associated with discontnued -1,297,766 -1,247,469
business¥*
*Net assets/ (Liabilities) includes the following related party receivable and payables
Trade receivable 44 39,785
Trade payable 401,968 399,786
Advance from customers and their credit balances 2,841 669




v

'(b) The following statement shows the revenue and ex

been discontinued.

penses of discontinued operations, of the Company which has

Particulars For the Year ended March.  For the year ended March

31, 2018 31, 2017 (Rs. '000)
{Rs. '000)_

Income

Revenue from operations 9,182 3,015,205

Revenue from operations 9,182 3,015,205

Other income 37,763 36,384

Total revenue (I) 46,945 3,051,589

Expenses

Purchase of traded goods 534 2,393,559

Decrease in inventories of traded goods 1,728 329,633

Employee benefit expense 21,952 162,027

Finance costs 71,434 70,496

Depreciation and amortization expense - 29,216

Other expenses 40,124 330,316

Total Expenses (II) 135,773 3,315,247

Profit (loss) before exceptional items and tax from (88,828) (263,658)

continuing operations (I) — (II)

Exceptional items - (30,225)

(Loss) before tax (88,828) (233,433)

Tax expenses

(1) Current tax - =

(2) Deferred tax - -

(3) MAT credit entitlement/utilised - T

(4)Tax adjustment related to an earlier year

(Loss) for the year (88,828) (233,433)

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss s 1,605

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising (88,828) (231,828)

Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the

period)

(c) The following statement shows the net cash flow of discontinued operations,

of the Company which has been

discontinued.
" Particulars Mar'31, 2018 Mar'31, 2017
Amount Amount
Rs. '000 Rs. '000
Operating (33,835) (680,440)
Investing 15,293 214,443
Financing 22,034 443,362
Net cash (outflow)/inflow 3,491 (22,635)
Earmning Per Share:
Earnings per equity share from discontinued business (0.89) (2.59)




35, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make {ud i and plions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabil and the acc ing disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future perinds

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions cencerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyand the control of tha Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused Lax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management Judgement is required to delermine the amount of deferred lax assels that can be recognised, based upon the likety iming and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has carmied forward tax losses. These losses expire in 8 years and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Company, The Company neither have any
taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company
has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuily plan and cther post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using acluarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fulure. These include the determination of the discount rate, future safary
Increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change Is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans op d In India, the g considers the interast rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the past-employ benefit obligati

The mortzlity rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the spedific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change cnly at interval in response to demographic changes,
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rales for the respective countries

Further details about gratulty obligations are given in Note 6.

36, Going Concern
As 3t 31 March 2018 the consolidated entity had a net asset deficiency of Rs. 12,97,766 thousand, However, the financial statements have been prepared on a goirg concern basis as

the ultimate parent company has pledged its continuing support for a minimum of 12 months from the data of Issuing these financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting palicies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Salutions Limitad

{Farm wn as Spice Retall Limited)
i
v
Ama Sing Ravindra Kumar
Sarawaal
Directdr Director
Membarship no.: ﬁ“}"\‘-\'!; DIN: 0535601 DIN: 07496783
Pet we- o665
Flace: Noida

Date: “‘08-2018
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